
 

 
 
 



 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 
 
Grayson County Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting 
January 13, 2022 
 
 
Members attending in person:  Michael S. Hash, John S. Fant (by teleconference/zoom) 
Kenneth R. Belton, R. Brantley Ivey, and Tracy A. Anderson 
 
Staff attending in person:  William L. Shepley, Mitchell L. Smith, Carl Caudill, II and Linda 
C. Osborne 



 
 

IN RE:  OPENING BUSINESS 
 
Supervisor Hash, Chair, reminded everyone of the decorum for the boardroom.  
Supervisor Hash recommended a change to the agenda and noted that in looking over 
the policy and procedures, in the public comment section it would hinder the board 
from taking public comments if the Wednesday/Saturday Trash Collection is listed as an 
agenda item.  Supervisor Hash noted that to not hinder the number of citizens that 
came to the meeting to speak, he is recommending that item be removed from tonight’s 
agenda.  Supervisor Anderson inquired if items 1-5 (meeting minutes of December 9, 
2021 and January 4, 2022; bills/payroll; unanticipated revenue; school appropriation; 
and library appropriation) on the agenda will be handled separately or if they are as one 
and Supervisor Hash noted they are all under the consent agenda items; Supervisor 
Anderson stated he would like to withdraw approving the minutes of the last meeting 
(Jan. 4, 2022 Organizational Meeting Minutes) and would like to withdraw his 
certification/consent where the Board went into closed session pursuant to code 
2.23711.  Supervisor Belton made the motion to approve the agenda/consent agenda 
with removing the Wednesday/Saturday Trash Collection agenda items.  Supervisor 
Hash also noted that Mr. Bill Sturgill will not be attending the meeting tonight for the 
Baywood Tech Phase I presentation – Mr. William Shepley will be giving that 
presentation.  Supervisor Fant noted to clarify - remove the agenda item regarding trash 
collection but will leave the public comment portion where it is on the agenda and 
Supervisor Hash confirmed.  Supervisor Hash noted that under some of the language 
under 6.4 Rules of Procedure it states: There may be an agenda item known as Public 
Comments to allow citizens time to address the Board regarding any matter that is not 
an agenda item and over which the Board has influence.  This period should not be used 
to request specific Board action at that meeting.   A Board member may comment after 
the public comments if they so wish.  Supervisor Fant restated that it’s recommended to 
hear the public comments, then make recommendations to staff as necessary.  
Supervisor Fant seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 
IN RE:  PUBIC HEARING(S) 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IN RE:  PRESENTATIONS OR REQUESTS 
 
Mr. Scott Wickham, Auditor of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates presented the audit for 
Grayson County year ending June 30, 2021, which is on file in the Grayson County 
Administrator’s Office.  Mr. Wickham noted the County received an unmodified opinion 
which means that’s the best you can receive.  Mr. Wickham did note that on pages 
156/157 the COVID-19 rules changed, and the County reported more expenditures than 
revenues also noting that the State was learning as they went as well and that the 
County will need to make sure the final report for the County was corrected.  Supervisor 
Fant inquired about the report being corrected and Mr. Wickham stated they have just 
finished the audit and hasn’t had a chance to speak with Mrs. Gayheart regarding the 
report.  Supervisor Fant noted the observation is on a new program showing we have 
more revenues than expenditures and it’s something the County needs to keep an eye 
on to make sure all balances and Mr. Wickham confirmed – the State takes these 
reports and compiles them all together and then notifies the Federal Government so 
essentially the County told them we had spent more than we had actually spent. Mr. 
Wickham noted he just wants to out the issue and to make sure the County has a good 
review process in place.  Supervisor Fant asked Administration to add this to the action 
items coming out of this meeting so an update can be given next month.  Mr. Wickham 
noted that the revenues are holding steady with operating expenses increasing 
approximately 5.1% per year.  It’s recommended that counties have two (2) months in 
reserve and the County is in a good position.  Mr. Wickham pointed out that a change 
has been made in lease agreements so if the County leases a building to rent it, you 
would now show that as a liability and recommends Administration go ahead and 
compile a list of leased/rented buildings so our records will be up-to-date as soon as 
possible.  Mr. Wickham referenced page 23 which shows the recommendations noting 
that most of the time if you correct one, it will correct the others and hopefully will see 
some changes for the good in the next audit.  Supervisor Anderson inquired about the 
liability in leasing/renting a building and Mr. Wickham noted that it’s an asset.  
Supervisor Fant inquired about the fund balance noting that last year the County was at 
18% and set a goal to get to 20% and Mr. Wickham noted we are at 21.1%.  Supervisor 
Hash thanked staff for their hard work.  Mr. Shepley thanked Mr. Wickham and his 
organization for all their help and partnership. 
 
Mr. Phillip Adams, EMS Captain Rugby Fire/Rescue and Chair Emergency Services 
Commission and Mr. Brian Billings, Chief of Elk Creek Fire Department gave a 
presentation regarding Emergency Services Commission Request regarding issues and 
concerns for Emergency Services.  Mr. Adams gave the following power point 
presentation regarding rescue and Mr. Billings on fire.  Proposals for needed times were 
also presented. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 
PURPOSE OF GRAYSON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES 

 
 
WHEN YOU CALL 9-1-1 SOMEONE WILL RESPOND 

 
DISCUSSION TOPICS: 

 
 
 



 
 
EQUITABLE FUNDING: AGENCY FUNDING FROM GRAYSON COUNTY 
*Excluding ATL and Four-for-Life Funds 

 
EQUITABLE FUNDING: 

 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFF: 

 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFF: PURPOSE OF ALS QUICK RESPONSE VEHICLE (QRV) 

 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFFED QRV: 



 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFF:  QRV START UP COST 

 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFF:  COST FOR ALS STAFF 

 
FUNDING FOR ALS STAFF:  EFFECTS OF NOT FUNDING QRV’S 

 
FUNDING OF APPARATUS:  BENEFITS FUNDING OF APPARATUS ANNUALLY 

 
FUNDING OF APPARATUS:  ROTATION APPARATUS EXAMPLE 



 
 
 
 
REASSESSING AGREEMENTS & CONTRACTS 

 
RECRUITMENT & RETENTION: 

 
REPRESENTATION: 

 
 



 

 
 
Thanked the Board for their continued support.  Mr. Adams noted that they would like a 
Board of Supervisor member to have a presence at their committee meetings.  Mr. 
Billings asked the County to work with the Emergency Services Commission.  Supervisor 
Belton inquired on why Galax Fire is on the list and Mr. Billings stated because the 
County has a contract with Galax and Galax/Grayson.  Supervisor Anderson inquired 
about the advantage of meeting the NFPA (National Fire Protection Association) and Mr. 
Billings noted it’s meetings the standards on fire equipment which makes sure we have 
safe/modernized gear/equipment, etc. – gear/equipment is aged out, so they are not 
wearing out of date protection gear or driving out of date vehicles.  Supervisor Anderson 
inquired about the fair funding to Galax and Mr. Billings responded that he doesn’t 
know where the contract is and we need to look at it to get it up to the 2022 standards.  
Supervisor Anderson inquired about suggestions in partnering with the school system 
and Mr. Billings noted that they would need to get with Mr. Hoyle, Grayson County 
Emergency Services Coordinator and see what would need to be done – Mr. Billings also 
noted that funds might be an issue.  Supervisor Fant thanked both Mr. Adams and Mr. 
Billings for bringing this to the Board.  Supervisor Fant inquired about the quick reaction 
force as it relates to the capabilities that already exists in our volunteer departments 
and talking about spending money on additional vehicles and paying someone to man 
those vehicles, what would the impact be on our volunteer service people and is there 
not capability that resides from an equipment standpoint that already exist that could 
potentially be the QRV if in fact the County funds the ALS.  Mr. Adams responded there 
is always a risk when you put a QRV in place with a paid person in there but it’s also a 
risk not to take – currently there is 1 department that is being heavily funded by the 
County for payroll and there are others that are close behind – there’s risk either way – 
QRV can respond and meet on scene and would make a full crew.  Supervisor Fant 
inquired about the apparatus plan or a procurement plan for that rotation through the 
different agencies and Mr. Billings responded yes, it would be 1 fire truck and 1 



ambulance per year.  Supervisor Fant asked the Commission to go back and look at a 
communication system, but there’s a short-term response requirement related to 
communication – does the Commission have any thoughts or recommendations on how 
to try to solve the short-term problem?  Mr. Billings noted that Mr. Gary Hash and Mr. 
Paul Hoyle have been working with TC 9-1-1 Coordinator Jolena Young on that – the 
agencies are getting to the point that something will have to be done on regarding 
communication and very soon.  Mrs. Young noted that it comes to a point that 
something must be done.  Supervisor Fant noted that if no one can reach help then it’s 
hard to respond and everything that was presented tonight is necessary for the Board to 
figure out and especially now with budget coming up.  Supervisor Fant asked that the 
short and long term communication problem be added so they can be addressed since 
we are starting into the budget season next month.  Mr. Billings noted that it would be 
discussed in the next Commission meeting.  Mr. Shepley thanked Mr. Adams and Mr. 
Billings along with the other emergency volunteers that attended the meeting.  Mr. 
Shepley also inquired about the NFPA standards helping with grants and Mr. Billings 
explained that it’s the AFG Grant which is separate.  Supervisor Fant also requested that 
staff add the Emergency Services Commission western end communication issues to the 
agenda for next month’s meeting. 
 
Mr. Larry D. Bolt, Commissioner of Revenue for Grayson County, and noted that 
Pearson’s Appraisal Service is in the process of completing the reassessment.  Mr. Bolt 
noted that the reassessment should have been completed by December 31, 2021 and in 
the State Code an extension of ninety (90) days may be granted for “good cause” which 
includes (1) computer issues with real estate software (2) supply chain issues getting 
enough envelopes (3) didn’t want to mail out the notice one (1) week before Christmas.  
Mr. Bolt also noted that asking for an extension is not uncommon – and extension was 
applied for in 2002, 2006, 2010 and 2016 and granted.  Mr. Bolt noted that in order for 
this to be handled tonight, a motion would need to be made stating that the Grayson 
County Board of Supervisors directs the County Attorney to petition the courts to grant 
an extension of time as allowed by State Code.  Supervisor Fant inquired about the date 
the extension would be in effect and Mr. Bolt noted December 31, 2021 and that would 
give three (3) months.  Supervisor Fant inquired about the budget on setting the levy 
and from Mr. Bolt’s perspective, is there any impact on this delay for the budget 
process?  Mr. Bolt noted that the reassessment will be completed before the budget is 
too far in.  Mr. Shepley stated that he thinks it will have an impact but will be relatively 
minor.  Mr. Bolt noted that the extension request is listed under new business on the 
agenda tonight, but it can be voted on now if the Board chooses.  Supervisor Anderson 
made the motion to approve the extension; duly seconded by Supervisor Ivey  Motion 
carried 5-0.   
 
Mr. Bolt then addressed the Board in place of Mr. Jeff Hayton of Pearson’s Appraisal 
Service – due to illness, Mr. Hayton is unable to attend this meeting but will attend next 
month’s meeting.  Mr. Bolt then presented the following regarding notices and 
requesting an appeal: 



 

 

 
 
2021 

 
 
 
 
 



2922 New Reassessment Values-subject to change with appeals process 

 

 
 

 
 



Mr. Bolt noted that on page 4 under Taxable Total Value for 2022 where it shows 
1,903,871,400 – this figure is before any appeals so this number could come down.  Mr. 
Bolt mentioned land, levy, manufactured detached, etc.  Mr. Shepley noted the impact 
this could have on the budget – after hearing Mr. Bolt explain, this could potentially 
impact how we approach the budget this year.  Mr. Bolt noted that the final numbers 
should be in by the end of February 2022 and final adjustments would be made.  Mr. 
Smith noted that according to the financial forecast, we are due for an increase.  Mr. 
Bolt also noted that was based on old numbers and values and after the reassessment 
you will have new numbers to work with.  Supervisor Anderson noted that it might be a 
good idea in the future to include an insert in with the notices regarding appeals and if 
you wish to appeal,  here’s the best way to do it. 
 
Mrs. Jada Black, Director of Planning and Community Development, addressed the 
Board and gave the following 2020 Comp Plan (which is on file in the Planning and 
Community Development Office as well as the County website) Update: 
As part of the ongoing work of the 2018 Grayson County Comprehensive Plan, the 
Grayson County Planning Commission is tasked yearly with completing and submitting a 
report to the Board of Supervisors as to how the County is meeting the goals and 
strategies listed within the Comprehensive Plan. This annual report is based on the 
calendar year 2020. To help facilitate this report, every County Department Head 
submitted pertinent data; once collected, the complied information was reviewed by 
the Planning Commission and revised several times before a final version was complete 
and presented in the board packets for tonight's meeting. The Planning Commission 
encouraged Department Heads to elaborate on how their departments have met 
applicable goals and strategies. Even with an unparalleled year, County Department 
Heads and their staff still managed to meet those goals and strategies within the 
Comprehensive Plan. A continued effort by all to work towards these common goals and 
improve on each Departments’ functions keeps us all moving forward to achieve our 
collective goals for Grayson County. Additionally, moving forward into 2022, per the 
requirements of section 15.2-2230 of the Code of Virginia, the Planning Commission 
shall review the Comprehensive Plan to determine whether it is advisable to amend the 
plan. Grayson County's Comprehensive Plan was revised and adopted in 2018, making 
2022 our five-year review marker. Planning Commission members will begin working 
monthly to review the individual chapters in the coming months, determining 
appropriateness for revisions and readoption should it be required. Supervisor Fant 
thanked Mrs. Black and the Planning Commission members for getting this back on track 
and suggested in looking at the approach on the evaluation, there needs to be some 
timing associated with strategies – some will be open-ended and in the priority 1, 2, 3, 
would be helpful to revisit which would help with the implementation – a lot of things 
are being done right but are we doing the right things – would be helpful in adding to 
the reporting requirements.  Supervisor Fant also noted that a couple of years ago the 
Federal Government passed the Opportunity Zones, from an Economic Development 



standpoint allow to invest capital gains from one place into these opportunity zones and 
in looking at economic development along with the comprehensive plan.  Supervisor 
Anderson inquired about bringing childcare to Grayson County and other hi-tech 
initiatives to keep our young adults in Grayson County.  Mrs. Black noted that what 
Supervisor Anderson is referring to came from the School Board and they will be the 
ones to show whether they are completed or still in the planning stages.  Supervisor 
Anderson inquired about Baywood Tech and Mrs. Black noted that came from 
Administration, not the School Board.  Supervisor Anderson noted that the Baywood 
Tech is under an accomplishment (4-4) and that is from the Administration.  Mr. Shepley 
noted the team has been meeting for the last couple of years and have invested some 
tax money to dedicate to it but it’s not done.  Supervisor Anderson noted it’s in the 
planning stage, it’s not an accomplishment. 

Supervisor Hash, Chair, called for a brief recess and meeting will reconvene at 8:00 p.m. 

Mr. Paul Hoyle, Grayson County Emergency Services Coordinator and Mr. Gary Hash 
presented the Regional Radio Interoperability Project Update and Mr. Hoyle noted that 
he can address the concerns regarding communication on the west end of the County.  
One of the things they have done is reassign some radios for Rugby to make sure that 
the ones responding from home have a little newer equipment – that has made some 
difference but it’s not a solution to the problem.  Last month the UHF antenna was 
replaced along with a cable – that has improved quality of communication somewhat.  
Purchasing 5 new mobile radios that we will set up at the base unit and will determine 
who needs those in their homes for the ones responding from home – these are much 
more powerful than the current ones.  Working with a Smyth County landowner to see 
if it would be possible work off the Panther Creek tower on his property; we do have a 
verbal to work off that tower from the landowner and will need to work with Smyth 
County so some progress is being made.  Mr. Hoyle then gave the following 
presentation: 

Welcome and Background 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 
Mr. Hoyle noted this is an expensive system but will help in the future.  Mr. Hash noted 
that the coverage percentage for Grayson County is 97% - mobile radios – 38% on the 
street for portable radios – 8% inside of any building in the county.  With the P25 
coverage goes up and with the DMR’s is doesn’t increase much. Mrs. Jolena Young, 
Director of TC 9-1-1, noted grants are being applied for and a grant application in and 
will know by the 26th whether we are still in the running for the grant – 12.7 M with a 
5M match.  Mr. Hash went through the cost estimates in the presentation.  Mrs. Young 
noted there is a ten-year maintenance which includes repairs and replacement and 
purchaser of subscriber units.  Mr. Hash noted that the goal is to improve 
communication – it’s a challenge and it will be expensive.  Supervisor Ivey inquired 
about the cost estimate and does it address radio problems with all agencies and Mr. 
Hash responded yes it does – fire, rescues, everyone.  Mr. Hash noted that the vehicle 
repeater (is in the vehicle) would be great but won’t solve the problem.  Supervisor Fant 
inquired about the propagation maps that were used to come up with the estimates for 
coverage which takes into account the geography but what about the trees and foliage 
since this is a digital system; Mr. Hoyle replied that is does include the trees and foliage 
along with the seasons (spring/winter) and also includes wind.  Maps are created 
electronically so the maps will need to be used as a conservative guide. Mrs. Young 
added that in the specs for the RFP that was sent out, the vender has to test and prove 
that we are getting that level of coverage – they actually have to demonstrate that 
coverage that is required by the RFP.  Supervisor Fant also noted that on the comparison 
slides it talked about towers have to be constructed to be able to place the equipment 
on and Mrs. Young noted that in their proposal they focused primarily on existing sites 
and there are two (2) proposed additional sites for Grayson.  Once the venders look, 
they may decide they may be less sites than engineering has proposed, or they could 
determine they need more sites.  Until proposals are back which would be March 31, 
2022, a lot can change when we look at the individual proposals.  Supervisor Fant asked 
Mrs. Young to take back to the Commission/Board that there are three (3) things when 
this started:  Broadband, Cellular and First Responders – we are addressing broadband; 
sounds like we have a pretty good plan on addressing First Responders but if we’re 
going to have to build towers to support the First Responder communication and ask to 
consider adding cellular technology to that tower so we can expand that network at the 



minimal cost which may mean we have to increase the construction strength of those 
towers.  Mrs. Young noted she would check the document to see if it was included and if 
not, she’s working on an addendum now and add it in if it’s not already included. 
 
Ms. Rebekah Roberts, G.A.T.E. Center Facility Manager, is listed to give an update on the 
G.A.T.E. Center but due to illness she is unable to attend.  Staff will move her to the 
February agenda. 
 
Mr. Shepley addressed the Board and noted that in looking at the Baywood School, 
there are three (3) things we are working towards establishing there: (1) Healthcare 
component (2) Hi-Tech Educational Center and (3) Childcare.  The healthcare 
component is ready to roll – we are just waiting for that section of the building to get 
completed, occupied and to work out the contractual agreement.  The Baywood 
Technical component is going through a planning phase and the childcare component is 
a hope that we can get a childcare aspect into that building – currently there is no 
particular person/group that has stepped forward yet to provide that service.  Mr. 
Shepley is recommending looking at the Baywood School in three (3) phases with the 
first phase being the healthcare and we do have the funds for that – Mr. Shepley 
introduced Jim Werth of Tri-Area Community Health CEO who will be running the 
facility.  Mr. Shepley has asked the contractors to attend the February meeting and 
present the Board with the phase 1 cost which would be the healthcare component.  
Rather than have the Board approve all three (3) phases, Mr. Shepley would like it done 
in separate phases.  Mr. Werth addressed the Board and explained they are funded by 
the Federal Government and their facility will not turn anyone away from receiving care 
– payment is based on a scale – they accept anyone with insurance or without insurance 
and this clinic would be just like the Troutdale Clinic that opened last year.  Supervisor 
Anderson inquired about the difference between this clinic and the Free Clinic in Galax 
and Mr. Werth noted that a Free Clinic is limited to who they can provide services for – 
most free clinics won’t accept people with Medicare or people with insurance – so they 
would just take a certain number of people who don’t have insurance; our clinic would 
accept the people with Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance, etc.  Supervisor 
Anderson noted that he had stopped by the Free Clinic in Galax and spoke with them – 
they currently accept Medicaid because there is a backlog of facilities that are not 
accepting Medicaid.  Supervisor Anderson inquired about having this service within six 
(6) miles of Baywood, he’s not convinced on why the county should continue to pursue 
this investment.  Mr. Shepley noted that there’s not enough health care providers out  
there and it’s a shame for us to pass up this not-for-profit opportunity plus the Federal 
Government shows this are as being underserved not to mention the pharmacy 
component that would save our citizens significantly.  Mr. Werth noted that part of the 
arrangement would be a lease agreement so the amount that the County puts in from 
the grant funding that the County has received for healthcare so that money would be 
paid back to the County – the County is not giving them the money – it would be paid 
back over a period of time which is an investment in the County’s future.  After further 
discussion, Supervisor Belton made the motion to move to go to Phase 1 and work on 



that section, having the contractor address the Board in February with the cost for 
Phase I.  Supervisor Anderson inquired if this is just to approve the phase 1, we’re not 
actually approving the monies since we don’t have the cost breakdown and Mr. Shepley 
noted that we are waiting on the contractor to give us that figure when they address the 
Board in February – we are approving to let us break it down in phases and having the 
contractor address the costs in phases as well.  Supervisor Hash asked if the motion 
needs to be restated and Supervisor Anderson stated yes since he’s unclear if they are 
approving the contractor or approving to do phase 1 and Supervisor Fant stated yes as 
well; once restated, Supervisor Fant asked for clarification.  Supervisor Hash stated this 
is for establishing a phase and proceed to accept the contractor and not the bid.  
Supervisor Anderson stated that he understood the motion to mean we agree to do it in 
phases and begin the process of phase 1 and in looking at the numbers it’s showing 
1.467M and is unsure what phase that falls into; Mr. Shepley noted that is the entire 
cost of all three (3) phases.  Supervisor Ivey noted that he understands that if we don’t 
break this up into phases, we will have to go back through the bid process and if it’s 
broken up into three (3) phases then we can start the process of approving the money 
for the contract for phase 1 – this is just approving the Baywood Phase I because the 
Board has to break it up into three (3) unless the Board wants to go back through the 
biding process.  Supervisor Anderson noted he’s not opposed to going back through the 
bid process and with 1.467M only for part of the first corridor, based on the information 
he is looking at, that doesn’t include the upstairs, gym or cafeteria so how can the 
1.467M be for all three (3) phases and voting to break it up and go back to the drawing 
board and figure this out.  Mr. Shepley noted that all three (3) phases doesn’t include 
the entire building.  Supervisor Hash stated a motion is before the Board and Supervisor 
Anderson noted he is still not clear asking if we are spending 1.4M if we vote yes now 
and the other members stated no.  Supervisor Ivey seconded the motion made by 
Supervisor Belton.  Motion carried 4-1 with Supervisor Anderson voting against. 
 
 
IN RE:  BOARD APPOINTMENTS  
 
Supervisor Anderson noted that the Twin County Free Clinic Board would like to have a 
representative from Grayson on their board and he would be willing to serve on that 
board if it’s the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Ag Advisory Committee 

• Henry R. Sturkie, II (Hank) – Wilson District 
• Gary L. Mitchell – Wilson District 

Supervisor Belton made the motion to approve; duly seconded by Supervisor Ivey.  
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 
 
 



Board of Equalization 
• Danny Boyer – Providence District – is unable to serve – need a representative 

from the Elk Creek District since the Providence District already has a 
representative.  Supervisor Anderson nominated Ty Cannaday of the Elk Creek 
District; duly seconded by Supervisor Ivey.  Motion carried 5-0. 

• Reece Sage – Wilson District – is unable to serve 
 
CGGSWA 

• Need to appoint a Board of Supervisor member to fill the remainder of Brenda 
Sutherland’s term which will end on 12/31/23.  Supervisor Anderson noted he would 
be willing to serve; duly seconded by Supervisor Ivey.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 
CLEOS – 1yr term – this appointment is for a Board of Supervisor member only 

• Primary Representative - Supervisor Anderson nominated Supervisor Hash; duly 
seconded by Supervisor Belton.   
• Alternate Representative – Supervisor Belton nominated Supervisor Fant; duly 
seconded by Supervisor Anderson.  Motion carried for both primary and alternate 5-
0. 

 
CSA Family Management Policy Team – 4yr term 

• Tom Revels (alternate for Mike Hash) – term will expire 12/31/22 
This appointment was tabled to the next meeting; Supervisor Anderson will 
pursue a citizen for this appointment. 
 

District III Governmental Cooperative – 1yr term 
• Brenda Sutherland – term expired 12/31/21 
• Elizabeth Jones (alternate) – term expired 12/31/21 – will continue to serve 

Supervisor Anderson noted that if Ms Jones would be willing to be the primary 
representative, he would step in an alternate.  Mr. Shepley noted that staff would reach 
out to Ms. Jones. 
 
DSS – Department of Social Services 4yr term 
• At the request of Kristin Shumate, DSS Director, appoint Brenda Sutherland as a 
local DSS Board member.  Supervisor Ivey made the motion; duly seconded by 
Supervisor Fant.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Mt. Rogers Community Services Board – 3yr term 
• Tom Revels – Mr. Revels resigned from this board – new appointee will fill the 
remainder of Mr. Revels term which will end on 12/31/22.  Supervisor Anderson noted 
he would be willing to serve if there’s no conflict – will table this appointment so staff 
can check on this. 
 
 



Mt. Rogers Planning District – Full Commission - 4Commission – 4r term 
• Tom Revels – term will expire 12/31/23 – Mr. Revels would like to continue to 
serve – staff has checked with MRPDC and Mr. Revels can continue to serve as a 
citizen of the County.  Supervisor Belton made the motion to approve; duly seconded 
by Supervisor Ivey.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Mt. Rogers PDC Transportation Rural Technical Committee – 2yr term 

• Brenda Sutherland – term expired 12/31/21 
• Amber Shuler (Alternate) – term expired 12/31/21 

Supervisor Anderson noted that he would be willing to serve as an alternate if Ms. 
Shuler would serve as primary – tabled this appointment until staff can check with Ms. 
Shuler. 
 
Public Service Authority (PSA) 

• Appoint R. Brantley Ivey and Tracy A. Anderson to serve on the PSA 
Supervisor Belton made the motion; duly seconded by Supervisor Anderson.  Motion 
carried 5-0. 
 
IN RE:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
None 
 
IN RE:  INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
As presented 
 
IN RE:  REGISTERED SPEAKERS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Wanda Pinion – 9476 Elk Creek Pkwy, Elk Creek - spoke regarding the trash and 
Baywood School - $1.4M is a lot to put in one place regarding the school when the 
money is needed in other areas of the county. Regarding the trash, the AEP utility bill 
shows there is a tax on it – what is that for?  Alleghany County has a little sticker that 
can be placed in the lower corner of the windshield that shows you are a resident of 
that county.  Asking the Board to bring the Wednesday/Saturday back and to extend the 
hours. 
 
John Dickenson – Deerwood Estates, Independence – across the road from the Public 
Works facility.  Requesting the facility be reopened, it’s a convenience to the citizens of 
the county, permanent residents and seasonal residents.  When I place my trash out for 
pickup the animals get into it.  Almost all residents that use it also bring recyclables as 
well.  Huge inconvenience not to be able to take trash on Wednesday/Saturday to the 
facility.   
 



Joe Reeves – 1146 Independence Ave., Independence – lives below the Public Works 
facility and yes, we get some trash occasionally, but Public Works is good to keep it 
picked up.  Dumpsters that the businesses pay for are being filled by citizens now since 
they can’t take their trash on Wednesday/Saturday.  Request it be opened back up and 
expand the hours; have more storage for trash.  Supervisor Anderson noted that he has 
spoken with Mr. Reeves and Mr. Reeves has some ideas regarding entering/exiting the 
lot.  Mr. Reeves noted that you could enter at the north and exit at the south (circle 
drive) and that way the flow is continuous.  
 
Ann Rose – Elk Creek - uses the Wednesday/Saturday service – when she sets out her 
trash, it draws animals; also annoyed that she didn’t know it wasn’t open; it’s been too 
dry to burn trash this year. Requested the Wednesday/Saturday service be reinstated. 
 
David Charles and Darrell Ward left – didn’t stay for public comment. 
 
Kenneth Scott – 659 Comers Rock Road, Elk Creek – the ability to drop off metal, 
computer parts which has been around for over 15 years – it was a shock for it to be 
closed.  Also suggested in one of the meetings to have public comments first.  Baywood 
Tech Center is it a “white elephant” or a money-making thing – a lot of money for a 
basement to be reconstructed.   
 
Todd H. Cannady submitted an email that Supervisor Anderson read:  “I would like to 
officially express my concern and displeasure in shutting down the trash drop off on 
Wednesdays/Saturdays at the waste management facility.  Since the inception of this 
service, I have seen a community effort and pride in keeping our community cleans and 
less trash piles over the banks on our secondary roads.  I hate to see a knee jerk reaction 
to problems that can be resolved by good management.  This situation does not have to 
be all or nothing.  Please consider taking measures at the Waste Management facility 
such as higher fences, better traffic flow, and more dumpsters to resolve the issues at 
hand.  I would think that handling these issues at one location would be much less 
expensive and controlled than trying to manage 15,000 home locations.  In essence we 
are bringing you our trash and paying you to pick it up.  Sounds like a good problem to 
work through.  Concerned citizen of Grayson County, Todd H Cannaday.   
 
Supervisor Anderson noted that he would like to resolve this tonight and open the 
facility back up and extend the hours; duly seconded by Supervisor Ivey.  Further 
discussion – Supervisor Fant noted that convenience and volume with the bigger 
concern being volume which translates into cost.  We need to think about how we want 
to proceed with this service component of the overall trash collection program that the 
County has.  Whether it’s done at the current location or another location which can 
have unattended consequences which we’ve already heard where businesses and 
private owners have a dumpster are taking on the weight of that decision to close it.  
We have seen an increase in trash collection especially during the pandemic.  Even with 
a volume issue we still have the safety issue with traffic.  Supervisor Fant is not opposed 



to reinstating the program, we just need to reassess the situation whether it’s at the 
same location or a different location.  Need to give staff time to come back to the Board 
with recommendations on how to accomplish it.  Supervisor Anderson spoke and noted 
that the AEP tax is for trash collection and generates approximated $400,000 per year 
that goes into the County’s general fund - no need to kick the can down the road and 
would like motion to stand.  Supervisor Ivey inquired if the motion is to open the facility 
back up immediately and look at ways to improve the service, then he’s good with 
seconding the motion.  Supervisor Anderson stated we open it back up with expanded 
hours and look at ways to improve the service and Supervisor Ivey stated we open it up 
immediately and start looking at ways to improve the service and Supervisor Anderson 
noted he could rest with that.  Supervisor Hash asked if that’s Supervisor Anderson’s 
restructured motion and Supervisor Anderson stated yes, and Supervisor Ivey seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
IN RE:  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ TIME 
 
None 
 
IN RE:  CLOSED SESSION 
 
None 
 
IN RE:  ADJOURN MEETING 
 
Supervisor Ivey made the motion to adjourn; duly seconded by Supervisor Anderson.   
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 
 


	IN RE:  OPENING BUSINESS

